

Regular Council

Monday, March 22, 2021

Place:		Council Chambers Richmond City Hall
Present:		Mayor Malcolm D. Brodie Councillor Chak Au Councillor Carol Day (by teleconference) Councillor Alexa Loo (by teleconference) Councillor Bill McNulty (by teleconference) Councillor Linda McPhail (by teleconference) Councillor Harold Steves (by teleconference) Councillor Michael Wolfe (by teleconference)
		Corporate Officer – Claudia Jesson
Call to Order	••	Mayor Brodie called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.
RES NO.	TEM	
		MINUTES
R21/6-1	1.	It was moved and seconded <i>That:</i>

- (1) the minutes of the Regular Council meeting held on March 8, 2021, be adopted as circulated;
- (2) the minutes of the Special Council meeting held on March 15, 2021, be adopted as circulated; and
- (3) the minutes of the Regular Council meeting for Public Hearings held on March 15, 2021, be adopted as circulated.

CARRIED



Regular Council Monday, March 22, 2021

PRESENTATION

With the aid of a PowerPoint presentation (copy on-file City Clerk's Office), Diane Purvey, Chair, Gateway Theatre Society Board, and Camilla Tibbs, Executive Director, Gateway Theatre, reviewed the Gateway Theatre's activities and operations in 2020. Ms. Tibbs, spoke on the challenges of operating during the COVID-19 Pandemic and upcoming programming in 2021.

Discussion ensued with regard to the upgrades to the Gateway Theatre building and Council commended the Theatre for their work in the community.

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE

R21/6-2 2. It was moved and seconded *That Council resolve into Committee of the Whole to hear delegations on agenda items (7:11 p.m.).*

CARRIED

In accordance with Section 100 of the *Community Charter*, Cllr. Au declared to be in a conflict of interest as his son is a member of Richmond Fire-Rescue, and Cllr. Au left the meeting -7:11 p.m.

3. Delegations from the floor on Agenda items

Bylaws for Adoption – Consolidated 5 Year Financial Plan (2021-2025) Bylaw No. 10239

Sheldon Starrett, Richmond resident, spoke on the survey initiated by the Richmond Community Coalition and expressed concern with regard to the proposed tax increase. He suggested that the City reconsider the proposed increase to the tax rate and review the deferral of hiring additional Richmond RCMP members.



Regular Council Monday, March 22, 2021

Bylaws for Adoption – Consolidated 5 Year Financial Plan (2021-2025) Bylaw No. 10239

Alice Wong, Richmond resident, expressed opposition to the proposed tax increase and spoke on the potential negative financial impact to the city's senior population with fixed incomes and residents facing financial hardship as a result of the COVID-19 Pandemic.

Bylaws for Adoption – Consolidated 5 Year Financial Plan (2021-2025) Bylaw No. 10239

Richard Lee, Richmond resident, expressed his opposition to the proposed tax increase and spoke on the financial hardships of seniors in the city and residents facing financial pressures as a result of the COVID-19 Pandemic.

Bylaws for Adoption – Consolidated 5 Year Financial Plan (2021-2025) Bylaw No. 10239

Albert Lo, Richmond resident, spoke in opposition to the proposed tax increase, expressing that such an increase would further increase financial pressure to residents affected by the COVID-19 Pandemic.

<u>Bylaws for Adoption – Consolidated 5 Year Financial Plan (2021-2025)</u> Bylaw No. 10239

Tom Clarke, Richmond resident, expressed concern with regard to the proposed tax increase, commenting that taxes are generally increasing relative to incomes and suggested that the City manage expenses to reduce taxes.

<u>Bylaws for Adoption – Consolidated 5 Year Financial Plan (2021-2025)</u> Bylaw No. 10239

Alice Tang, Richmond resident, spoke in opposition to the proposed tax increase, expressing that such an increase would negatively impact residents and businesses already affected by the COVID-19 Pandemic.

Bylaws for Adoption – Consolidated 5 Year Financial Plan (2021-2025) Bylaw No. 10239

Zach Segal, Richmond resident, spoke in opposition to the proposed tax increase, expressing that a low tax environment would be favourable to businesses in the city and that tax revenues would normalize after the COVID-19 Pandemic.



Regular Council Monday, March 22, 2021

Bylaws for Adoption – Consolidated 5 Year Financial Plan (2021-2025) Bylaw No. 10239

Kari Leoganda, Richmond resident, expressed concern with regard to the proposed tax increase and the potential negative impact to residents. She urged that the City reconsider the tax increase.

Cllr. Au returned to the meeting -7:50 p.m.

R21/6-3 4. It was moved and seconded *That Committee rise and report (7:50 p.m.).*

CARRIED

CONSENT AGENDA

R21/6-4 5. It was moved and seconded *That Items No. 6 through No. 9 be adopted by general consent.*

CARRIED

6. COMMITTEE MINUTES

That the minutes of:

- (1) the Community Safety Committee meeting held on March 9, 2021;
- (2) the General Purposes Committee meeting held on March 15, 2021; and
- (3) the Public Works and Transportation Committee meeting held on March 16, 2021;

be received for information.



Regular Council Monday, March 22, 2021

7. RCMP MONTHLY ACTIVITY REPORT --- JANUARY 2021 (File Ref. No. 09-5375-02) (REDMS No. 6608584)

That a letter be drafted for the Mayor's signature and sent to the Province of BC, outlining Richmond's auxiliary police program, including additional needs and successes of the program.

ADOPTED ON CONSENT

8. CITY CENTRE DISTRICT ENERGY UTILITY BYLAW NO. 9895, AMENDMENT BYLAW NO.10245

(File Ref. No. 01-0060-20-LIEC1; 12-8060-20-010245) (REDMS No. 6615254 v. 3; 6615314)

That the City Centre District Energy Utility Bylaw No. 9895, Amendment Bylaw No. 10245 be introduced and given first, second, and third readings.

ADOPTED ON CONSENT

9. 2021 LIQUID WASTE MANAGEMENT PLAN BIENNIAL REPORT (File Ref. No. 10-6000-01; 10-6400-09-01; XR: 01-0157-30-LWMP1) (REDMS No. 6606775; 6599619)

That the staff report titled "2021 Liquid Waste Management Plan Biennial Report," dated February 12, 2021, from the Director, Engineering, be submitted to Metro Vancouver.

ADOPTED ON CONSENT

CONSIDERATION OF MATTERS REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT AGENDA

PUBLIC DELEGATIONS ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS

R21/6-5 10. It was moved and seconded *That Council resolve into Committee of the Whole to hear delegations on non-agenda items (8:09 p.m.).*

CARRIED



Regular Council Monday, March 22, 2021

With the aid of a PowerPoint presentation (attached to and forming part of these minutes as Schedule 1), Naomi Leung and Karina Reid, Richmond residents, spoke on addressing racism and hate crimes in the community. They encouraged the City to develop equitable anti-racism policies and enhance the City's Cultural Harmony Plan.

Discussion ensued with regard to (i) the diverse cultural make up of Richmond, (ii) the increasing incidents of hate crime, (iii) options to develop programs and policies to address racism, (iv) options to enhance the City's Cultural Harmony Plan, (v) enhancing policies on Indigenous groups as recommended by the Truth and Reconciliation Commission of Canada and (vi) engaging community groups such as the Richmond Intercultural Advisory Committee and Richmond School District No. 38.

As a result of the discussion, the following **referral motion** was introduced:

R21/6-6 It was moved and seconded

That staff work with the Richmond Intercultural Advisory Committee and analyze the submission from the delegation on Anti-Racism, and report back.

The question on the motion was not called as discussion ensued with regard to engaging the Richmond RCMP and options to rename the Richmond Intercultural Advisory Committee.

The question on the referral motion was then called and it was **CARRIED**.

R21/6-7 11. It was moved and seconded *That Committee rise and report (8:35 p.m.).*

CARRIED

PUBLIC ANNOUNCMENTS AND EVENTS

Mayor Brodie declared a proclamation that the week of March 22 to 27, 2021 as Elimination of Racial Discrimination Week in Richmond.



Regular Council Monday, March 22, 2021

BYLAWS FOR ADOPTION

In accordance with Section 100 of the *Community Charter*, Cllr. Au declared to be in a conflict of interest as his son is a member of Richmond Fire-Rescue, and Cllr. Au left the meeting -8:41 p.m.

R21/6-8 It was moved and seconded *That the Consolidated 5 Year Financial Plan (2021-2025) Bylaw No. 10239 be adopted.*

The question on the motion was not called as staff responded to queries, noting that the proposed average household tax increase would be approximately \$99 per year and if the proposed hiring of Richmond RCMP officers and Richmond Fire-Rescue Firefighters are deferred, each household, on average, would save approximately \$17 and \$13 per year respectively. Staff added that the Consolidated 5 Year Financial Plan has already gone through public consultation and any further amendments to the Plan would require additional public consultation.

Discussion then ensued with regard to the deferring the hiring of Richmond Fire-Rescue, and as a result, the following **referral motion** was introduced:

R21/6-9 It was moved and seconded That the Consolidated 5 Year Financial Plan (2021-2025) Bylaw No. 10239 be referred back to staff to review the deferral of the proposed hiring of additional Richmond Fire-Rescue Firefighters and the 1% funding to reserves for one year, and report back.

> DEFEATED Opposed: Mayor Brodie Cllrs. Loo McNulty McPhail Steves



Regular Council Monday, March 22, 2021

	Discussion then ensued with regard to (i) supporting community safety and emergency services, (ii) improving the city's crime rates, (iii) the comparative tax rates in other municipalities, (iv) locating cost savings in other City services and utilities, and (v) options to minimize the tax rate in the future.
	The question on the motion was then called and it was CARRIED .
	Cllr. Au returned to the meeting – 9:05 p.m.
R21/6-10	It was moved and seconded That the following bylaws be adopted:
	Public Health Protection Bylaw No. 6989, Amendment Bylaw No. 10240
	Noise Regulation Bylaw No. 8856, Amendment Bylaw No. 10241
	Market Rental Housing Agreement (5500 No. 3 Road) Bylaw No. 10242
	Richmond Zoning Bylaw No. 8500, Amendment Bylaw No. 10007
	CARRIED
R21/6-11	It was moved and seconded That Richmond Zoning Bylaw No. 8500, Amendment Bylaw No. 9953 be adopted.
	CARRIED Opposed: Cllr. Day
R21/6-12	It was moved and seconded That Richmond Zoning Bylaw No. 8500, Amendment Bylaw No. 10130 be adopted.
	CARRIED

DEVELOPMENT PERMIT PANEL

12. It was noted that the corresponding bylaw related to DP 17-781907 will require adoption prior to issuance of the Development Permit, as a result the following **referral motion** was introduced:



Regular Council Monday, March 22, 2021

R21/6-13 It was moved and seconded That the recommendation of the Panel to authorize the issuance of a Development Permit (DP 17-781907) for the property at 6017 No. 4 Road (formerly 9980 Westminster Highway) be referred to staff, and placed back on the next Regular Council meeting agenda.

CARRIED

R21/6-14 It was moved and seconded That the minutes of the Development Permit Panel meeting held on March 10, and the Chair's report for the Development Permit Panel meeting held on October 30, 2019, be received for information.

CARRIED

ADJOURNMENT

R21/6-15 It was moved and seconded *That the meeting adjourn (9:08 p.m.).*

CARRIED

Certified a true and correct copy of the Minutes of the Regular meeting of the Council of the City of Richmond held on Monday, March 22, 2021.

Mayor (Malcolm D. Brodie)

Corporate Officer (Claudia Jesson)

Schedule 1 to the Minutes of the Regular meeting of Richmond City Council held on Monday, March 22, 2021.

Anti-racism City of Richmond

PRESENTATION BY KARINA REID, COMMUNITY ACTIVIST NAOMI LEUNG, STUDENT AND ACTIVIST SUSTAINABILITEENS



We acknowledge that we live, work and organize on the unceded territories of the Coast Salish and x^wmə0kwəyəm (Musqueam), həndəminəm (hun-ki-meen-um) language speaking group.

Land acknowledgements are a small but important step towards reconciliation.

Why be specific with anti-racism policy?
Accordiring to the BC Government :Anti-racism is the practice of identifying, challenging, preventing, eliminating and changing the values, structures, policies, programs, practices and behaviours that perpetuate racism.
The City of Richmond has over (76.3%) of Richmond's population identified as a visible minority. As Premier Horgan mentioned yesterday, crime stats from Vancouver show anti-Asian hate crimes are up 717% over the past year. This requires immediate action. We should be leader in implementing anti-racism policies. City Council should pledge to be an anti-racist council and city and use resources and change what you are currently doing to actively dismantle racist structures and challenge racial inequality.
Racism and discrimination continue to perpetuate Indigenous and Black people and all other racialized people, many of whom are members of Richmond's most economically and socially marginalized communities. Municipal governments, share responsibility and have an important role to play in combating racism and discrimination and advocating for equitable and just city for all citizens.
Some of the cities that have implemented an anti-racism policy: Vancouver, Victoria, New Westminster, White Rock, North Vancouver. Delta https://www.cbc.ca/news/canada/british-columbia/metro-vancouver-racism-municipalities- policies-1.5615831

Cultural Harmony

The City of Richmond Cultural Harmony page

In Richmond, we are a community that celebrates a rich history of culture, diversity and heritage linked to the arrival and influence of immigrants that began over a century ago. In this statement you are erasing Indigenous people and the Cultural Harmony plan there is no mention on the Indigenous people, the affects of colonization and how we should be working to decolonize. What is harmony? dictionary defines harmony as "a situation in which people are peaceful and agree with each other, or when things seem right or suitable together". We can't be in harmony as a city if we are not acknowledgement the systemic barriers and structural racism people in Richmond face.

Move beyond diversity towards racial equity
Equity and inclusion create more sustainable cities where people from all walks of life have the right to, and can participate fully in, social, economic, political, and cultural life.
We must understand our history, interrogating our own personal biases, foster a culture of building empathy and respect for others, and extremely important get comfortable with vulnerability. This is dedicated daily work that must be modeled from the top.
BC Government Anti-racism:
https://www2.gov.bc.ca/gov/content/governments/multiculturalism-anti-racism/anti-racism
Canadian Government Building a Foundation for Change: Canada's Anti-Racism Strategy 2019–2022:
https://www.canada.ca/en/canadian-heritage/campaigns/anti-racism-engagement/anti-racism- strategy.html#a4c

Am I racist?

British Columbia Office of Human Rights Commissioner has a new campaign called Am I racist? Share with Richmond residents. Create a campaign to help educate people.

View content here: https://bchumanrights.ca/be-anti-racist-history/

If I say I don't see colour am I racist? If I want to forget our province's history, am I racist? If I assume you are not from here, am I racist?

History is not something we create; it is something that we learn from on continuous basis. We so much to learn from Indigenous culture, in everything we do, we should be actively looking at how to decolonize.

	What Richmond can do:
. .	Join other Canadian cities to on the Coalition of Inclusive Municipalities. Cities including Burnaby, Vancouver, Victoria <u>https://en.ccunesco.ca/about-ccunesco/our-members#ccmard</u>
~i	Pass a motion to implement United Nations Declaration on the Rights of Indigenous Peoples. City of Vancouver just passed a motion to implement UNDRIP
ю.	Adopt Truth and Reconciliation Commission of Canada: Calls to Action for cities http://nctr.ca/assets/reports/Calls to Action English2.pdf
4.	Create Anti-racism and Equity Advisory Committee, Anti-Racism Action Plan:Create Public Campaign: Day of Action Against Racism: Vancouver declared May 29 as a Day of Action, Internal Systems Change hiring senior Equity Lead as a key leadership position.
5.	Public statements are important because they publicly declare support, express intention, and express a position and should then result in action.
Ö	Vancouver passed a motion asking the province to collect disaggregated race-based and socio- demographic data. The full motion (A Call for Race Based and Socio-Demographic Data in B.C.) is here: https://council.vancouver.ca/20200623/documents/b4.pdf